

# Minutes of the regular meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin: November 8, 1958. 1958

Madison, Wisconsin: Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System, 1958

https://digital.library.wisc.edu/1711.dl/M4GECNNEO5R6S86

Copyright 2008 Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System

The libraries provide public access to a wide range of material, including online exhibits, digitized collections, archival finding aids, our catalog, online articles, and a growing range of materials in many media.

When possible, we provide rights information in catalog records, finding aids, and other metadata that accompanies collections or items. However, it is always the user's obligation to evaluate copyright and rights issues in light of their own use.

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN

Madison, Wisconsin Held in the President's Office Saturday, November 8, 1958, 9 A.M.

President Renk presiding

PRESENT: Regents Bassett, Gelatt, Jensen, Konnak, Laird, Renk, Rennebohm, Steiger, Watson, Werner. (Regent Rennebohm entered the meeting at 9:20 A.M.)

Upon motion of Regent Watson, seconded by Regent Steiger, it was VOTED, That the minutes of the regular meeting of the Board held on October 18, 1958, be approved as sent out to the Regents.

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE PRESIDENT

- Degrees -

1. That upon the certification of the Director of Admissions and Records, Milwaukee, the following degrees be granted and confirmed:

#### BACHELOR OF SCIENCE

Rasma Tirums Ekmanis

#### BACHELOR OF ARTS

#### Benno Treu

2. That upon the certification of the Registrar, Madison, the following degrees be granted and confirmed:

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE

Gerald Andrew Petersen (Cont.)

#### BACHELOR OF SCIENCE (Medical Science)

Kenneth Eugene Vogel

#### BACHELOR OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

William Spencer Hilliard

Date of October 13, 1958

#### BACHELOR OF LAWS

John Quarles Kamps Brian Thomas Steinhaus

Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent Bassett, recommendations 1 and 2 listed under Degrees were adopted.

Upon motion of Regent Watson, seconded by Regent Werner, it was VOTED, That the actions taken by the President of the University since the last meeting of the Regents, relating to appointments, resignations, leaves of absence, and change of status of personnel with rank less than that of Associate Professor, which are included in the file of employment forms presented at this meeting, be approved, ratified, and confirmed.

Upon motion of Regent Steiger, seconded by Regent Werner, it was VOTED, That the gifts and grants listed in <u>EXHIBIT</u> <u>A</u> and <u>EXHIBIT</u> <u>A-1</u>, attached, be accepted; and that the Vice President - Business and Finance be authorized to sign the agreements.

President Elvehjem presented the following recommendation for the acceptance of the bequest by the late Anna M. Mashek:

> That the bequest by the late Anna M. Maskek, of La Crosse, Wisconsin, to be used to aid needy students at The University of Wisconsin, be accepted by The Regents of The University of Wisconsin in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Last Will and Testament of Anna M. Mashek, Deceased; and that the Secretary be authorized to accept and sign receipts for this bequest in the name of The Regents of The University of Wisconsin, and do all things necessary to effect the transfer of this bequest to The University of Wisconsin.

(Cont.)

Regent Gelatt stated that he was honored to move the acceptance of this bequest by the late Miss Mashek, who was his English teacher in high school in La Crosse, and who was one of the best teachers he had ever worked with.

The motion was seconded by Regent Steiger, and it was voted.

President Elvehjem presented the following recommendation of the University Campus Planning Commission relating to amending the building priority list of University projects for the 1959-61 biennium and revising the building requests for the second, third and future biennia as the result of the action of the Coordinating Committee for Higher Education in adding additional funds to the University projects for the 1959-61 biennium:

> That, upon recommendation of the University Campus Planning Commission, the amended building priority list of the University projects for the 1959-61 biennium and the revised building requests for the second, third and future biennia (<u>EXHIBIT</u> <u>C</u> attached) be approved, with the understanding that any portion of the University list not funded in 1959-61 will be subject to reconsideration.

Regent Steiger moved the approval of the above recommendation, with the motion being seconded by Regent Werner, and it was voted unanimously.

President Renk introduced Professor Merle Curti who spoke to the Regents on the subject of "Research Professorships at the University of Wisconsin". (Copy of Professor Curti's remarks attached as <u>EXHIBIT</u> D.)

-----

President Renk requested that there be placed on the January, 1959, agenda of the Educational Committee an item for the consideration of Professor Curti's suggestion for the establishment of an Interdisciplinary Research Institute to be devoted to a larger and deeper understanding of how knowledge may be put to more effective uses.

> President Renk and Regent Rennebohm left the meeting and Vice President Steiger assumed the Chair.

Vice President Peterson presented the report of the Vice President -Business and Finance. Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent Watson, it was VOTED, That the Reports of Actions Taken numbered I. and II., listed under the Report of the Vice President - Business and Finance (<u>EXHIBIT B</u> attached), be approved, ratified and confirmed.

The Vice President - Business and Finance presented, for the information of the Regents, a Report of Actions Taken (pursuant to Regent authorization of March 14, 1942) (see Item III. of the Report of the Vice President - Business and Finance, and Exhibit B-1 appended to <u>EXHIBIT B</u> attached).

The Vice President - Business and Finance presented the report of budget transfers for the period October 28, 1958 through October 29, 1958, for the information of the Regents. (See Exhibit B-1 appended to EXHIBIT B attached).

Regent Jensen presented the report of the Educational Committee.

-----

Upon motion of Regent Jensen, seconded by Regent Watson, it was

VOTED, That Eugene A. Wilkening, Professor of Rural Sociology, be granted leave of absence from February 1 to June 30, 1959; February 1959 with pay, March 1959 through June 1959 without pay from the Department of Rural Sociology; and that he receive a research appointment for the month of March 1959, Graduate School, to supplement the Fulbright Award, at \$300.00 for the month; charge to 93-600.

Upon motion of Regent Jensen, seconded by Regent Konnak, it was VOTED, That Cornelius C. Janzen, Professor Emeritus of Economics, UW-M, be employed on a special service contract for the first semester of 1958-59 on a part-time basis to assist in part-time instruction in economics; at a salary of \$800 for the semester; charge to 20-40-4607-1011-2.

Regent Gelatt left the meeting.

-4-

Upon motion of Regent Jensen, seconded by Regent Laird, it was VOTED, That the action of the University Faculty on October 6, 1958, approving the addition to the Medical Course curriculum of a required one-credit course in Medical Genetics to be offered in the second semester of the sophomore year, beginning in 1958-59, be approved.

Upon motion of Regent Jensen, seconded by Regent Konnak, it was VOTED, That the action of the University Faculty on October 6, 1958, approving the joint recommendation of the Medical School and the College of Letters and Science for revisions in the curriculum for the course in Medical Technology, Faculty Document 1343 (<u>EXHIBIT E</u> attached), with certain details to be worked out later for the UW - Milwaukee through the Letters and Science Joint Conference Committee, be approved.

Upon motion of Regent Jensen, seconded by Regent Konnak, it was VOTED, That, upon the recommendation of the Faculty of the School of Pharmacy, the award of honorary recognition citations to the following individuals at the fall Pharmacy Conference on November 6, 1958, be approved:

> Mr. Glenn L. Jenkins, Lafayette, Indiana Mr. Jennings Murphy, Milwaukee, Wisconsin Mr. Donald Niebuhr, Milwaukee, Wisconsin.

Upon motion of Regent Jensen, seconded by Regent Watson, it was VOTED, That approval be granted for the construction of the first unit of the Gymnasium to be financed from receipts of the Department of Intercollegiate Athletics; that authority be granted for the preparation of preliminary plans and specifications for the first unit of the Gymnasium; and that the study of the physical education program as a whole be continued looking forward to the construction and the nature of the construction of the second unit of the Gymnasium to be financed from State appropriations.

Regent Werner presented the report of the Business and Finance Committee.

Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent Bassett, it was VOTED, That the 1958-59 University operating budget - appropriation 20.830(401) academic student fees, be increased \$190,000 due to increased enrollment and that the additional funds be allotted as follows:

Letters and Science Salaries - Instruction		\$ 90,000
University of Wisconsin - Milwaukee Salaries - Instruction Phy. Plant Supplies & Expense	\$32,500 <u>17,500</u>	50,000
Summer Session Supplies & Expense		10,000
President's Unassigned		40,000
	Total	\$190,000.

President Renk and Regent Rennebohm re-entered the meeting.

Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent Bassett, it was VOTED, That upon the recommendation of the Campus Planning Commission the preliminary plans and outline specifications for the elementary school at the Eagle Heights Apartments be approved and that authority be granted to prepare final plans and specifications.

Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent Bassett, it was VOTED, That upon the recommendation of the Campus Planning Commission the administrative officers of the University be authorized to state, in connection with plans for financing a new laboratory for lakes research, that an area on Lake Mendota in the vicinity of the Hydraulics Laboratory will be allocated as the site for a new lakes research laboratory.

Regent Werner moved the adoption of the following recommendation of the Business and Finance Committee:

That the contract with the Madison Bus Company for campus bus service be amended to provide for the operation of an additional bus during peak load periods, and that the Vice President - Business and Finance be authorized to sign the amendment.

(Cont.)

Regent Rennebohm inquired how many of the passengers using the campus bus are persons who do not park their cars in University parking areas. He was concerned with the extent of the University providing bus service to students at the same time consideration is being given to expending large sums for gymnasium facilities to be used in connection with physical education programs for students. Vice President Peterson indicated that approximately 20% of the campus bus passengers are cash customers who do not have University parking permits. Dean Wendt pointed out that this 20% of cash customers, in addition to students, included persons attending institutes and conferences on the campus who park their cars in Parking Lot 60 and take the campus bus to the Memorial Union and the Center Building.

Regent Rennebohm seconded the above motion and it was voted.

Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent Bassett, it was VOTED, That the Vice President - Business and Finance be authorized to have appraisals made by the Madison Board of Realtors of the properties on West Johnson and Mills Streets needed for the first unit of a new Chemistry Building and of the property at 1117 West Johnson Street.

Regent Werner moved the adoption of the following recommendation of the Business and Finance Committee, and the motion was seconded by Regent Rennebohm:

> That, upon the recommendation of the Dean of the College of Agriculture, authority be granted to move the prefabricated steel barn from the Eagle Heights Farm to the University Farm at Arlington to provide additional facilities for sheep, and that, subject to the approval of the Governor and the State Chief Engineer, a contract for constructing the foundation and moving the building be awarded to Chase, Inc., Sun Prairie, on the basis of their low bid in the sum of \$8705, and that the Vice President - Business and Finance be authorized to sign the contract (chargeable to funds allocated by the Regents on June 17, 1958, for remodeling and new facilities at the Arlington Farms and to the balance in the allotment of June 17, 1958, for poultry husbandry facilities).

Regent Laird inquired as to what it would cost to build a new prefabricated steel barn instead of moving the present one; and she was advised that the cost of building a new barn would be about \$10,000.

The question was put on the above motion and it was voted.

Regent Gelatt re-entered the meeting.

-7-

At the request of Regent Rennebohm, Vice President Peterson presented the report of the Special Regent Committee on Agricultural Lands.

Upon motion of Regent Rennebohm, seconded by Regent Jensen, it was VOTED, That the preliminary plat of the University Hill Farms - North Hill Addition, dated November 3, 1958, prepared by Andrew Dahlen, be approved, and that the Executive Committee be authorized to act for the Board in approval of the final plat.

Upon motion of Regent Rennebohm, seconded by Regent Jensen, it was VOTED, That, subject to the approval of the State Building Commission, a minimum price of \$2100 be established for residential lots in the University Mill Farms - Parkway Addition.

Upon motion of Regent Rennebohm, seconded by Regent Konnak, it was VOTED, That the Chairman of the Special Regent Committee on Agricultural Lands, the Director of Physical Plant Planning, and the Chairman of the University Hill Farms Architectural Control Committee be designated to act jointly as the designees of the Board of Regents in the approval of construction projects under the land use and building type provisions of the Covenants, Restrictions and Easements applicable to the University Hill Farms - Commercial Reserve Addition.

Upon motion of Regent Rennebohm, seconded by Regent Konnak, it was VOTED, That the budget allotment for the office of the Special Committee on Agricultural Lands be increased from \$10,000 to \$20,000, chargeable to receipts from the sale of University Hill Farms lands.

As Chairman of the Special Regent Committee on Acquisition of Land in Milwaukee, Regent Steiger reported that there would be a public hearing on Friday, November 14, 1958, in the Common Council Chambers of the City Hall in Milwaukee regarding parking in the vicinity of the University of Wisconsin - Milwaukee Kenwood Campus. (This meeting was arranged by Alderman Ralph J. Landowski of the City of Milwaukee.) Regent Steiger also stated that he hoped that the Special Regent Committee on Acquisition of Land in Milwaukee would have some interesting news to report regarding land acquisition at the December meeting of the Regents.

Regent Watson, as Chairman of the Special Regent Committee on the Future Development of the University, reported that the Regents had asked the University administration to prepare some guide lines that might serve as a vehicle for preliminary discussion by the Regents, with the very specific understanding that the Regents would add to them to arrive at their determinations. With reference to a suggestion, made at the meeting of this Committee on the preceding day, that the Regents should do their own thinking in this matter, Regent Watson stated that, if the Committee is to proceed without the benefit of the advice and counsel of the administration and the faculty, the usefulness of the Committee will be very much limited. There was general discussion of this matter with agreement that, although the making of the final decisions will be the responsibility of the Regents, the Regents should have the benefit of the advice and counsel of the University administration and faculty in this matter. It was suggested that an early decision be reached as to the ground rules to be followed by this Committee in carrying out its work. President Renk requested that a meeting of the Special Regent Committee on the Future Development of the University be scheduled for Friday afternoon, December 5, 1958, in Milwaukee, for a period of from one-half hour to an hour, for the purpose of determining procedures to be followed in carrying out the work of the Committee.

President Renk announced that the meetings of the Regents to be held in Milwaukee on December 5 and 6, 1958, would begin at 9 A.M. on Friday, December 5, with a bus tour of the campus. He stated that the December Regent Committee and Board meetings would be very important and urged all Regents to attend.

> Upon motion of Regent Gelatt, seconded by Regent Renk, it was VOTED, That the meeting adjourn.

-----

The meeting adjourned at 10:10 A.M.

Clarke Smith, Secretary

4126-87

#### GIFTS AND GRANTS

G]	$\mathbf{F}$	Т	S	:
----	--------------	---	---	---

- (1) \$ 3,000.00 The Conservation Foundation, New York, a gift to aid in the publication by the University of Wisconsin Press of the manuscript, "New Laws for New Forests: An Evaluation of Wisconsin's Forest-Fire, Tax, Zoning, and County Forest Laws in Operation," by Erling D. Solberg. (47-2763)
- (2) \$ 125.00 The Alcoa Foundation, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, an unrestricted gift to the University for general university operating expenses in connection with a scholarship awarded directly by the Alcoa Foundation. The Alcoa Foundation will continue this support for an additional year if the recipient is in residency. President's Special Fund (Trust)
- (3) \$ 500.00 Wisconsin Association of Insurance Agents, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, to renew the Wisconsin Association Scholarship in the School of Commerce. (47-908)
- (4) \$ 25.00 Anonymous contribution to be added to the Zøological-Serology Fund for the support of serological work in the Department of Zoology. (47-1044)
- (5) \$ 35.00 Various contributors, to be added to the Friends of the University Library Fund. (47-822)
- (6) \$ 200.00 Sheboygan County Bankers Association, a gift of two scholarships of \$100 each to be available to youths from Sheboygan County enrolled in the 1958-59 Farm Short Course. Scholarships are to be known as the Sheboygan County Bankers Association Farm Short Course Scholarships. (47-2071)
- (7) \$ 1,200.00 Clark-Taylor Bankers Association for the continuation of a scholarship program during the period of the 1958-59 Farm Short Course session. Six scholarships are to be awarded to farm students selected by the College of Agriculture and the Association upon their enrollment in the Farm Short Course. (47-432)
- (8) \$ 150.00 The Madison Chamber of Commerce, Inc., Madison, Wisconsin, for the renewal of a scholarship in the College of Agriculture, Farm Short Course. The scholarship is to be awarded to a farm boy, preferably over seventeen years of age, who was an exhibitor in the Junior Livestock Show. (47-564)
- (9) \$ 1,500.00 The Borden Company, New York City, for the renewal during the five year period 1958-59 through 1962-63, of a gift to provide a scholarship of \$300 per year to an outstanding senior student in the College of Agriculture who has included in his curricula two or more dairy subjects, the scholarship to be known as The Borden Agricultural Scholarship Award. (47-682)

GIFTS:

- (10) \$ 2,445.00 Foundry Educational Foundation, Cleveland, Ohio, for the continuation of the Foundry Educational Foundation Scholarship program during 1958-59 in foundry engineering. College of Engineering. (47-767)
- (11) \$ 75.00 Mrs. Erma Skoy, Mrs. Elsie Waldenberger and Mrs. Leilah Halverson, Holmen, Wisconsin, in memory of their mother, Mrs. William Sandman, for the support of cancer research in the Tumor Clinic, Medical School. (47-1038)
- (12) \$ 1,500.00 Owens-Illinois Glass Company, Toledo, Ohio, to continue the Owens-Illinois scholarships in the College of Engineering during the first semester of 1958-59, under terms approved by the Regents on May 12, 1956. (47-2197, \$1200.00 President's Special Fund (Trust), \$300.00)
- (13) \$ 100.00 Schoolmasters Club of Wisconsin, a gift to establish the UW-M School of Education Improvement Fund, to be expended at the discretion of the Dean of the School of Education of the University of Wisconsin - Milwaukee for any purpose beneficial to the UW-M School of Education. Additional contributions may be added to this fund. (47-2764)
- (14) \$ 400.00 Jefferson County Bankers Association, for the continued support of two scholarships of \$200.00 each to students enrolled in the 1958-59 Farm Short Course, the scholarships to be known as the "Jefferson County Bankers Association Farm Short Course Scholarships." (47-2267)
- (15) \$ 6,500.00 Smith, Kline & French Foundation, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, a gift to be used for the purchase of research equipment, School of Pharmacy. (47-2765)
- (16) \$ 1,064.00 Mrs. John A. Schindler, Monroe, Wisconsin, given in memory of her late husband, Dr. John A. Schindler, to be used for research in Psychosomatic Medicine under the direction of Dr. David T. Graham of the Department of Medicine. (47-2766)
- (17) \$ 5.00 Mrs. Lorelle A. Wolf, Madison, Wisconsin, a contribution in memory of the late Samuel Ives, to be added to the George A. Allez Memorial Fund (Trust).
- (18) \$ 25.00 Mrs. Lorelle A. Wolf, Madison, Wisconsin, a contribution in memory of her late husband Lorelle A. Wolf, to be added to the George C. Allez Memorial Fund (Trust).

GIFTS:

(19) \$	<ul> <li>10.00 - Dr. Elizabeth Rose, Winnewood, Pennsylvania,</li> <li>10.00 - Drs. Robert &amp; William Randolph, Manitowoc, Wisconsin,</li> <li>25.00 - Dr. Thomas Burdon, Green Bay, Wisconsin,</li> <li>200.00 - Dr. Robert Gilman, Arlington 8, Virginia,</li> <li>250.00 - Dr. Roland Benson, Grand Rapids, Michigan,</li> <li>500.00 - Dr. K. K. Chen, Indianapolis, Indiana,</li> <li>500.00 - Dr. Harry Culver, Chicago, Illinois,</li> <li>10.00 - Dr. John Wilson, Johnson City, Tennessee,</li> <li>10.00 - Dr. John Lynch, Richmond, Virginia,</li> <li>50.00 - Dr. Frederic W. Haigh, Los Angeles 27, California,</li> <li>25.00 - Dr. A. R. Curreri, Madison, Wisconsin,</li> <li>1,940.00 Additional contributions to be added to the Medical Library Building Trust Fund (Trust).</li> </ul>
(20)\$	785.50 - Family and Friends of the late Mrs. Elaine Schober, given in her memory to be used in the Cancer Research Hospital in the study of solid tumors. (47-2767)
(21)\$	30.00 - Various contributors, to be added to the Friends of the University Library Fund. (47-822)
(22)\$	124.50 - Friends and Neighbors of the late Donald Strehlow, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, given in his memory, for the support of cancer research in the Cancer Research Hospital. (47-1038)
(23)	Mauther, Inc., Madison, Wisconsin, a gift of two x-ray machines to be used for any purpose beneficial to the research and instructional programs at the University of Wisconsin.
(24)\$	1,000.00 - Lancaster Community Chest, Inc., Lancaster, Wisconsin, for the support of cancer research in the Cancer Research Hospital. (47-1038)
(25)\$	500.00 - Mr. Duncan J. Stewart, Rockford, Illinois, an additional contribution toward the support of a graduate fellowship in Fishery Biology, Department of Zoology (Graduate School). Additional contributions may be added to this fund from time to time. (47-2546)
(26) \$	1,000.00 - University of Wisconsin Foundation, a gift from the Smith-Douglass Company, Inc., Norfolk, Virginia, to be added to the Smith-Douglass Company, Inc., Agricultural Scholarship Trust Fund, accepted by the Regents on February 12, 1955. (Trust)

GIFTS	5:
-------	----

- (27) \$ 600.00 Tri-County Bankers Association, for the renewal of a scholarship program for the College of Agriculture, Farm Short Course. Three scholarships of \$200.00 each are to be awarded to farm youths selected by the donors and approved by the Dean of the College of Agriculture. (47-1033)
- (28) \$ 25.00 Dr. Kenneth P. Knudtson, Seattle, Washington, 50.00 - Dr. Adam J. Earney, Millersburg, Ohio, 66.67 - Dr. R. Carl Bunts, Richmond, Virginia, 50.00 - Dr. James McIntosh, Madison, Wisconsin, 25.00 - Dr. A. M. Schwittay, Madison, Wisconsin, 216.67 contributions to be added to the Medical Library Building Trust Fund.
- (29) \$ 100.00 Mr. and Mrs. Harold Martel, Beaver Dam, Wisconsin, given in memory of their son, Neil Martel, for the support of leukemia research in the Medical School. (47-77)
- (30) \$ 10.00 Family and Friends of the late Mrs. Elaine Schober, given in her memory, to be used in the Cancer Research Hospital in the study of solid tumors. (47-2767)
- (31) \$ 2,500.00 Kohler Foundation, Inc., Kohler, Wisconsin, a supplement to the income account of the Kohler Family Scholarships for the 1958-59 academic year. (Trust Income)
- (32) \$ 3,067.13 Former Students and Friends of the late Professor L. R. Ingersoll for the establishment of the L. R. Ingersoll Memorial Fund. The income is to be awarded annually to a student selected by the Department of Physics for the best work in introductory physics. Any major change in the use of the L. R. Ingersoll Memorial Fund shall be recommended by the Physics Department to The Regents of The University of Wisconsin. (Trust Fund)
- (33) \$ 20.00 Dr. Paul Stange, Vallejo, California, 70.00 - Dr. Norman Franken, Havre, Montana, 100.00 - Dr. Vernon C. Turner, Evanston, Illinois, 200.00 - Dr. W. A. Wagner, Waupun, Wisconsin, 390.00 contributions to be added to the Medical Library Building Trust Fund.

#### EXHIBIT A

#### GIFTS AND GRANTS

GIFTS:

- (34) \$ 200.00 The First American State Bank, Wausau, Wisconsin, to continue a Farm Short Course Scholarship in the College of Agriculture for 1958-59. The recipients of the scholarship shall be nominated by the donor and approved by the Dean of the College of Agriculture. (47-155)
- (35) \$ 300.00 Oscar Mayer and Company, Madison, Wisconsin, for the continuation of "The Oscar Mayer and Company Farm Short Course Scholarships," during the 1958-59 Farm Short Course. Four scholarships of \$75.00 are to be awarded to farm boys from Southern Wisconsin upon their selection by the Dean of the College of Agriculture and the Director of the Farm Short Course. (47-160)
- (36) \$ 100.00 University of Wisconsin Foundation, Madison, Wisconsin, a gift made by the Dane County Pharmaceutical Society, Inc., to be added to the School of Pharmacy Undergraduate Scholarship Fund. (47-1078)

-5-

GRANTS:

- (1) \$ 66,920.00 Department of Health, Education, and Welfare, Washington, D. C., a grant to continue a professional ship program for the period September 1, 1958 through August 31, 1959, School of Nursing. (NT-13-C2) (484-2695)
  - (2) \$ 4,000.00 The Upjohn Company, Kalamazoo, Michigan, a grant in continued support of a study of adrenal cortical function, Department of Medicine. (47-2537)
  - (3) \$ 500.00 - E. M. Bekkedal and Company, Inc., Westby, Wisconsin, to be added to the tobacco research fund to study ways of improving the quality, particularly the burn quality, of tobacco grown in Wisconsin, Departments of Horticulture and Soils. (47-623)
  - (4) \$ 100.00 - The Scott Viner Company, Columbus, Ohio, for the support of an industrial research project to study methods of improving Wisconsin beets and carrots used for canning, particularly by breeding better strains of these vegetables, Department of Horticulture. (47-2270)
  - (5) \$ 3,000.00 Merck and Company, Inc., Rahway, New Jersey, to continue a research project to study the factors that affect the nature and production of antibiotics, September 1, 1958 to August 31, 1959, Departments of Biochemistry and Bacteriology. (47-361)
  - (6) \$ 1,980.00 S. B. Penick & Company, New York, New York, for the establishment and support of a graduate fellowship in the field of organic chemistry and particularly as it relates to alkaloidal chemistry, Department of Chemistry (Graduate). (47-2759)
  - (7) \$ 800.00 - The McCornick-Mathers Publishing Company, Wichita, Kansas, for continued support of an industrial research project having for its purpose the study of color in instructional materials, School of Education. (47-2333)
  - (8) \$ 2,500.00 Committee for Economic Development, New York, New York, to continue support of work of the Bureau of Business Research and Service, School of Commerce, in its program of service to business and industry of the State. (17-817)
  - (9) \$ 1,000.00 General Cigar Co., Inc., New York, New York, to be added to the tobacco research fund to study ways of improving the quality, particularly the burn quality, of tobacco grown in Wisconsin, Departments of Horticulture and Soils. (47-623)

GRANTS:

- (10) \$ 2,288.00 Easter Seal Research Foundation, Chicago, Illinois, for the support of research entitled "Growth and Development of Basic Motor Skills," in the Department of Physical Education - Women, during the period November 1, 1958 through October 31, 1959. (47-2768)
- (11) \$ 2,500.00 Abbott Laboratories, North Chicago, Illinois, for the support of research in the field of antifibrillatory compounds, including the drug, SA-97 - Department of Anesthesiology. (47-2769)
- (12) \$ 5,000.00 Society for the Investigation of Human Ecology, Incorporated, Forest Hills, New York, for the continued support to January 1, 1959 of a research project entitled "The Correlation of Psychological and Physiological Variables in Personality and Personality Change," Department of Psychiatry. (47-2590)
- (13) \$ 3,243.00 Muscular Dystrophy Associations of America, Inc., New York, for the continued support of research entitled "Histochemical Studies on Muscle under Altered Physical Conditions" for the period July 1, 1958 through June 30, 1959, Department of Pathology, Medical School. (47-343)
- (14) \$ 13,000.00 American Phytopathological Society, Ithaca, New York, to cover the manufacturing costs of the Golden Jubilee volume of the American Phytopathological Society -University of Wisconsin Press. (47-2770)

GRANTS:	
(15)	National Institutes of Health, Bethesda, Maryland, to support the following research projects:
1)\$ 500.00 ·	- "Human Hyperglobulinemic Serum Proteins and Hegredation Products," for the period July 1, 1958 through June 30, 1959, Department of Physiological Chemistry. (CF-8921) (484-2688)
2) \$ 20,700.00 .	- "Value Assimilation Among Immigrant Laborers," for the period June 1, 1959 through May 31, 1960, Department of Sociology. (RG-5342(C1)) (484-2694)
3) \$ 11,500.00 -	- A grant in support of the cost of pilot plant facilities which are being used in connection with a number of biochemical research projects for the period May 1, 1959 through April 30, 1960, Department of Biochemistry. (RG-5698(C1)) (484-2693)
4) \$ 22,471.00 -	- "Biology and Chemistry of Plant Resistance to Insects," for the period June 1, 1959 through May 31, 1960, School of Pharmacy. (RG-5093(C2)) (484-2696)
5) \$ 2,162.00 -	• "Primary Nitrogen Fixation in Natural Lake Waters," for the period November 1, 1958 through October 31, 1959, Department of Zoology. (RG-5980(A)) (484-2698)
6) \$ 9,717.00 -	"The effects of neurologic diseases on cerebrospinal fluid enzymes," for the period November 1, 1958 through October 31, 1959, Department of Neurology. (B-2005) (484-2699)
(16)	National Science Foundation, Washington, D. C., to support the following research projects:
1) \$ 30,500.00 -	"Genetics of Interracial Crosses in Hawaii, for a period of approximately one year, Department of Medical Genetics. (G6100) (484-2665)
2) \$ 35,100.00 -	"Cytogenetic and Population Genetic Studies in Drosophila," for a period of approximately two years, Department of Genetics. (G6188) (484-2689)
3) \$ 29,500.00 -	"Radical Addition, Rearrangement and Solvolytic Reactions," for a period of approximately three years, Department of Chemistry. (G6285) (484-2690)
4) \$ 22,000.00 -	"The Physiological Basis of Virulence in the Brucellae," for a period of approximately three years, Department of Bacteriology. (G6439) (484-2692)

GRANTS:

- (16) Continued:
  - 5) \$285,500.00 "Academic Year Institute for High School Teachers of Science and Mathematics," Department of Zoology, period from September 1, 1959 for approximately twelve months. (G6535) (484-2697)

\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*

#### SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

#### November 1958

	November 1958	Cumulative Totals 1958-59	Cumulative Totals 1957-58	
Gifts	\$ 31,712.80	\$ 412,444.36	\$ 238,919.67	
Grants	576,481.00	3,714,547.60	3,883,619.79	
TOTALS	\$608,193.80	\$4,126,991.96	\$4,122,539.46	

The above totals represent funds received and pledged as of this date and are subject to adjustments which may result in variation in the actual receipts realized. Also, these totals do not include the value of equipment and other gifts in kind.

-9-

SUPPLEMENTAL LIST OF GIFTS AND GRANTS (Amounts not included in totals for Exhibit A)

GIFTS: (Continued)

(37)

Dr. R. G. Arveson, Frederic, Wisconsin, former member of the Board of Regents, the gift of a gavel, made from the John Muir locust tree, and a base for use by the Medical School.

GRANTS: (Continued)

(17) \$ 46,750.00 - The Rockefeller Foundation, New York, a grant to defray the costs of a program of studies of modern languages and literature of India, during the four year period beginning January 1, 1959. (47-2772)

-10-

REPORT OF THE VICE PRESIDENT - BUSINESS AND FINANCE

to the

BOARD OF REGENTS

November 8, 1958

I. Report of Actions Taken - Contracts and Leases with United States Government for research work, educational programs and services requested by the Government for military personnel and veterans

the set

Agency ARMY RESEARCH	Contract No.	Mod. No.	Addnl. Funds Provided	Termination Date	Department	<u>Fund No</u> . (484)
Chicago Ordnance District	DAI-28-017-501- ORD-(P)-1100	IJ1	(Extension)	4/30/59	Chemistry	814
Biological Warfare Labs Chemical Corps Research & Development Command	DA-18-064-404-CMI-21	13	(Extension) (0.H. rate established)	12/31 <b>/</b> 59	<sup>M</sup> echanical Engineering	2223
ATOMIC ENERGY COMMISSION RESEA	RCH					
Chicago Operations Office	AT(11-1)-64 Project 9	8	\$12 <b>,</b> 000	9/10/59	Physics	581
NAVY RESEARCH						
Office of Naval Research	Nonr-1202(04)	5	\$15 <b>,</b> 411	9/30/61	Zoology	2095
<u>DEPARTMENT</u> <u>OF</u> <u>COMMERCE</u> – <u>INSTR</u>	UCTION					
Weather Bureau	Cwb-9535		5275 per semester	1958-59 Acad.Yr.	Meteorology	

Report of Vice President - Business and Finance to Board of Regents - November 8, 1958

II. <u>Report of Actions Taken</u> - <u>Contracts and Leases Not in Excess of 55,000</u> (Pursuant to Regent Authorization of January 12, 1957)

-2-

1. Construction Contract Award

Contractor	Project	Chargeable	Amount
Madison, Wisconsin	Silo Construction - Dairy Cattle Unit - Arlington Farms	Sec. 20.830(1) - General <sup>O</sup> peration	3792

III. <u>Report of Actions Taken - Memorandum Agreement - U.W. Press</u> (Pursuant to Regent Authorization of March 14,1942) (See Exhibit B-1, attached)

IV. Budget Transfers

(See Exhibit B-1, attached)

## Memorandum Agreement - University of Wisconsin Press

Title of Publication	Author	Address
Institutional Economics	Anne C. Polisar	Ardsley, New York

## Budget Transfers

Date	Amount		From		<u>To</u>	Purpose
10-28-58	\$1,884	1-41	President's Unassigned	1-41	Gen Univ. Serv News Service	471 copies of the <u>Badger</u> for Wisconsin high schools
10-28-58	750	1-41	State Geologist Groundwater Resources Supplies & Expense	1-41	State Geologist Grdwater Res. Sal & Wages	Employment of a Project Assistant on the cooperative program
10-29-58	5,000	1-41	Univ. Extension Supplies & Expense	1-41	Univ. Extension Equipment	Emergency purchase of an accounting machine

Fresident's Unassigned Balance \$

\$26,922.40

じゃ

### WISCONSIN STATE COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN

#### 1959-1961 BUILDING REQUEST

#### Priority Listing of Projects

Project		State Colleges		University	
11010	<mark>사실은</mark> 사람들은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 같다. 같은 것은 것은 것이 같은 것은 것은 것을 것을 하는 것이 같은 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 같이 있다. 같은 것은 것은 것이 같은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것이 있는 것이 같이 있는 것이 같이 없다.	Cost	Cumulative	Cost	Cumulative
			Cost		<u>Cost</u>
1.	Emergency Remodeling and Repairs (SC 1)	1,782,000	1,782,000		
2.	Emergency Remodeling and Repairs (UW 1)			820,000	820,000
3.	Engineering Building Completion (UW 9)			5,244,750	6,064,750
4.	Stout Shop Laboratory (SC 8)	925,000	2,707,000		
5.	River Falls Laboratory School (SC 9)	1,000,000	3,707,000		
6.	Oshkosh Library and Classroom (SC 10)	1,500,000	5,207,000		
7.	Chemistry - Pharmacy Research (UW 10)			562,500	6,627,250
8.	Psychology (UW 11)			2,200,000	8,827,250
9.	Stout Physical Education (SC 11)	1,200,000	6,407,000		
10.	Plant Science Wing - Agronomy (UW 12)			1,800,000	13,627,250
11.	Whitewater Physical Education (SC 12)	1,200,000	7,607,000		
12.	Minor Construction and Remodeling (UW 13)			600,000	11,227,250
13.	Milwaukee General Classroom (UW 14)			2,500,000	13,727,250
14.	La Crosse Physical Education Classroom (SC	13) 1,800,000	9,407,000		

	State	State Colleges		versity
<u>Project</u>	Cost	Cumulative Cost	Cost	Cumulative <u>Cost</u>
15. Administration - First Unit (UW 15)			1,750,000	15,477,250
16. Stevens Point Laboratory School (SC 14)	1,200,000	10,607,000		
17. Land Acquisition in UW Interest Areas (U	W 16)		1,600,000	17,077,250
<ol> <li>Minor Construction, Remodeling, and Land Acquisition (SC 15)</li> </ol>	957,500	11,564,500		
19. Heating Plant Expansion Plans (UW 17)			70,000	17,147,250
20. WHA Transmitter and Tower (UW 18)			60,000	17,207,250
21. Arboretum - Plant Propogating Complex (U	W 19)		35,000	17,242,250
22. Minor Construction, Remodeling and Repai			750,000	17,992,250
23. Swine Research Laboratory (UW 21)			250,000	18,242,250
24. Walnut Street Greenhouse Range Addition	(UW 22)		55,000	18,297,250
25. Gymnasium (State Funds) (Men's Unit) (UW	1 23)		3,000,000	21,297,250
26. Stout Heating (SC 16)	990,000	12,554,500		
27. Oshkosh Laboratory School (SC 17)	1,200,000	13,754,500		
28. Law School Completion (UW 24)			1,300,000	22,597,250
29. Eau Claire Science (SC 18)	2,000,000	15,754,500		
30. Medical - Enclosed Passageway (UW 25)			45,000	22,642,250
31. Medical - Facility for Cobalt Unit (UW 2	26)		32,250	22,674,500

		<u>State</u> (	Colleges	Unive	C. Vervieweiten eine werden die begeneten The general state werden in der Berenzungt aufe
Pro	<u>iect</u>	Cost	Cumulative Cost	Cost	Cumulative <u>Cost</u>
32.	Milwaukee - Math., Physics and Engineering (UW 27)			2,000,000	24,674,50
33.	Remodeling and Repairs (UW 28)			100,000	24,774,50
34.	Engineering Classrooms, Offices, Labs (UW 29)			2,000,000	26,774,50
35.	Whitewater Science (SC 19)	2,000,000	17,754,500		
36.	Cooperative Housing Units (State Portion)(UW 30)			450,000	27,224,50
37.	Arboretum - Supervisor's Residence (UW 31)			20,000	27,244,50
38.	Entomology - Forestry - Wildlife Mgmt. (UW 32)			2,300,000	29,544,50
39.	La Crosse Science (SC 20)	2,000,000	19,754,500		
40.	Music Hall (UW 33)			2,500,000	3 <b>2</b> ,044,50
41.	Oshkosh Science (SC 21)	2,000,000	21,754,500		
42.	Wisconsin High School Laboratory School (UW 34)			3,000,000	35,044,50
43.	Minor Construction, Remodeling, and Land Acquisition (SC 22)	945,000	22,699,500		
44.	Medical Library (UW 35)			200,000	35,244,50
45.	Arboretum Headquarters Building (UW 36)			40,000	35,284,50
46.	Central Garage (UW 37)			250,000	35,534,50
47.	Bascom Hall Additions, incl. elevator (UW 38)			2,000,000	37,534,50
48,	Platteville Industrial Arts (SC 23)	2,000,000	24,699,500		
49.	Medical Rehabilitation Center (UW 39)			700,000	38,234,5

		State	Colleges	Uni	versity
Pro	<u>ject</u>	Cost	Cumulative Cost	Cost	Cumulative Cost
50.	Beef Research Laboratory (UW 40)			200,000	38,434,500
51.	WHA-TV Facilities (UW 41)			175,000	38,609,500
52.	(a) Land Acquisition (UW 42a)\$ 550,000(b) Madison Utilities Extensions (UW 42b)250,000			800,000	39,409,500
53.	Superior Physical Education (SC 24)	1,200,000	25,899,500		
54.	<ul> <li>(a) Milwaukee Science Completion (UW 43a)\$1,750,000</li> <li>(b) General Remodeling &amp; Reapirs (UW 43b) <u>160,500</u></li> </ul>			1,910,500	41,320,000
55.	River Falls Agriculture (SC 25)	1,500,000	27,399,500		
56.	Chemistry Building, Unit No. 2 (UW 44)			2,400,000	43,720,000
57.	W.I.T. Engineering (SC 26)	2,500,000	29,899,500		
58.	<ul> <li>(a) General Classroom Facility Unit #1 (UW 45a)</li> <li>(b) Chemistry Bldg., Unit #3 (UW 45b)</li> <li>(c) 2,000,000</li> </ul>			4,000,000	47,720, <b>0</b> 00
59.	Stout Industrial Arts (SC 27)	1,500,000	31,399,500		
60.	<ul> <li>(a) Vet Science Building (\$2,750,000 minus \$750,000 from others) (UW 46a) \$ 2,000,000</li> <li>(b) Milwaukee Utilities Extensions (UW 46b) 265,000</li> </ul>				
	(c) Land Acquisition (UW 46c) <u>135,000</u>			2,400,000	50,120,000
61.	Minor Construction, Remodeling & Land Acquisition (SC 28)	601,000	32,000,500		
62.	Additional Boiler, Madison (UW 47)			960,000	51,080,000
63.	La Crosse Classroom (SC 29)	1,750,000	33,750,500		

가 같은 것은	State	e Colleges	Un	iversity
<u>Project</u>	Cost	Cumulative Cost	Cost	Cumulative Cost
64. (a) Milwaukee Fine Arts Completion (UW 48a)         (b) Agricultural Library (UW 48b)         (c) Land Acquisition (UW 48c)			2,800,000	53,880,000
65. Eau Claire Classroom - Partial Appropriation (SC 30)	255,420	34,005,920		
<ul> <li>66. (a) General Computing &amp; Data Processing Lab., Basic Unit (UW 49a) \$ 176,880</li> <li>(b) New Extension Center Equip. (UW 49b) <u>175,000</u></li> </ul>	and the second		351,880	54,231,880
GRAND TOTALS		34,005,920		54,231,880

-5-

November 7, 1958

For Steering Committee U.W. October 28, 1958 KFW

#### SUGGESTED ADDITIONS TO THE 1959-61

#### PRIORITY BUILDING LIST

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN

#### Item 52 - U.W. Building A - \$800,000

Ma	and Acquisition adison Utilities Extensions	\$ 550,000 250,000	<b>\$</b> 800,000
Item 54	+ - U.W. Building B - \$1,910,500		
	ilwaukee Science Completion eneral Remodeling and Repairs	1,750,000 <u>100,500</u>	1,910,500
Item 56	5 - U.W. Building C - \$2,400,000		
Cł	nemistry Building, Unit No. 2		2,400,000
Item 58	3 - U.W. Building D - \$4,000,000		
	eneral Classroom Facility, Unit No. 1 nemistry Building, Unit No. 3	2,000,000 2,000,000	4,000,000
Item 60	) - U.W. Building E - \$2,400,000		
M	et Science Building (\$2,750,000 - \$750,000 from others) Ilwaukee Utilities Extensions and Acquisition	2,000,000 265,000 <u>135,000</u>	2,400,000
Item 62	2 - U.W. Building F - \$960,000		
Ac	dditional Boiler, Madison		960,000
Item 64	4 - U.W. Building G - \$2,800,000		
Ag	lwaukee Fine Arts Completion gricultural Library and Acquisition	1,800,000 900,000 100,000	2,800,000
Item 66	5 - U.W. Building H - \$351,880		
Ne	eneral Computing and Data Processing Lab., Basic Unit w Extension Center Equipment	176,880 175,000	351,880
Note:	Item numbers refer to similarly numbered	d items in the Priorit	y Listing

Note: Item numbers refer to similarly numbered items in the Priority Listing of Projects approved by the Coordinating Committee for Higher Education 10-3-58.

10-28-58 KFW

## SUMMARY

	U.W. 1959-61 List	Add	New U.W. Total
Remodeling and Repairs	\$ 1,950,000	\$ 160,500	\$ 2,110,500
Land Acquisition (Madison and Milwaukee)	1,600,000	785,000	2,385,000
Utilities and Service	320,000	1,475,000	1,795,000
Administration	1,750,000		1,750,000
Padio and T.V.	235,000		235,000
Arboretum	95,000		95,000
Engineering	7,244,750		7,244,750
Letters and Science	7,262,500	4,400,000	11,662,500
Agriculture	4,605,000	2,900,000	7,505,000
Education	6,000,000	- 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 199 - 1997	6,000,000
Medical School	977,250		977,250
Law	1,300,000		1,300,000
Milwaukee Bldgs.	4,500,000	3,550,000	8,050,000
Cooperative Housing	450,000		450,000
Inter-College		2,176,880	2,176,880
Extension-Equip. New Centers	320,000	175,000	495,000
	\$38,609,500	\$15,622,380	\$54,231,880

#### UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN

November 7, 1958

#### PROPOSED BUILDING PRIORITY PROGRAM

1959-1961 BIENNIUM

** CCHE <u>NO.</u>	U.W. <u>NO.</u>	PROJECT	PROJECT COST	CUMULATIVE COST
2.	1.	Emergency Remodeling and Repairs (See Schedule A)	\$ 820,000	\$ 820,000
	2.	Law Library Wing	(645,000)	
	3.	Social Studies Wing - Commerce Bldg.	(1,660,000)	
	4.	Milwaukee Science Building	(2,194,500)	
	5.	Milwaukee Heating Plant Expansion	(367,500)	
	6.	Extension Building (Land at \$100,000 included)	(1,675,000)	
	7.	Milwaukee Fine Arts Building	(1,108,800)	
	8.	Mathematics Building (Land at \$150,000 included)	(2,250,000)	
3.	9.	Engineering Building Completion	(5,244,750)	
7.	10.	Chemistry-Pharmacy Research Bldg. (Total \$2,225,000, including \$250,000 remodeling in west wing of Chemistry and \$100,000 for land. Funds expected WARF \$750,000 and NIH \$912,500)	562,500	1,382,500
8.	11.	Psychology Building (Land at \$150,000 included)	2,200,000	3,582,500
10.	12.	Plant Science Wing - Agronomy	1,800,000	5,382,500
12.	13.	Minor Construction and Remodeling (See Schedule B)	600,000	5,982,500
13.	14.	Milwaukee General Classroom Bldg.	2,500,000	8,482,500
15.	15.	Administration Building - First Unit (Land at \$200,000 included)	1,750,000	10,232,500
17.	16.	Land Acquisition in U.W. Interest Areas (See Schedule D)	1,600,000	11,832,500
19.	17.	Heating Plant Expansion Plans (Madison)	70,000	11,902,500

\*\* Numbers on priority listing of projects approved by The Coordinating Committee for Higher Education 10-3-58.

Propos	sed Bui	lding Priority Program		Page 2
CCHE NO.	U.W. <u>NO.</u>	PROJECT	PROJECT COST	CUMULATIVE COST
20.	18.	WHA Transmitter and Tower	60,000	\$11,962,500
21.	19.	Arboretum-Plant Propogating Complex	35,000	11,997,500
22.	20.	Minor Construction, Remodeling and Reapirs (See Schedule C)	750,000	12,747,500
23.	21.	Swine Research Laboratory	250,000	12,997,500
24.	22.	Walnut Street Greenhouse Range Addition	55,000	13,052,500
25.	23.	Gymnasium (State Funds) (Men's Unit)	3,000,000	16,052,500
28.	24.	Law School Completion	1,300,000	17,352,500
30.	25.	Medical - Enclosed passageway	45,000	17,397,500
31.	26.	Medical - Facility for Cobalt Unit (Total \$53,000)	32,250	17,429,750
32.	27.	Milwaukee - Math., Physics & Engr. Bldg.	2,000,000	19,429,750
33.	28.	Remodeling and Repairs (See Schedule E)	100,000	19,529,750
34.	29.	Engineering Classrooms, Offices, Labs.	2,000,000	21,529,750
36.	30.	Cooperative Housing Units (State Portion)	450,000	21,979,750
37.	31.	Arboretum - Supervisor's Residence	20,000	21,999,750
38.	32.	Entomology-Forestry-Wildlife Mgt. Bldg.	2,300,000	24,299,750
40.	33.	Music Hall	2,500,000	26,799,750
42.	34.	Wisconsin High School Laboratory School	3,000,000	29,799,750
44.	35.	Medical Library (Total \$815,000 with \$615,000 or more from alumni)	200,000	29,999,750
45.	36.	Arboretum Headquarters Building (First Un	it) 40,000	30,039,750
46.	37.	Central Garage	250,000	30,289,750
47.	38.	Bascom Hall additions, incl. elevator	2,000,000	32,289,750
49.	39.	Medical Rehabilitation Center (Total Cost \$1,400,000)	700,000	32,989,750
50.	40.	Beef Research Laboratory	200,000	33,189,750

#### Proposed Building Priority Program

#### Page 3

CCHE NO.	U.W. <u>NO.</u>	PROJECT	- -	PROJECT COST	CUMULATIVE COST
51.	41.	WHA-TV Transmitter & Tower	\$	175,000	\$33,364,750
52.	42.	(a) Land Acquisition (b) Madison Utilities	\$ 550,000		
		Extensions	250,000	800,000	34,164,750
54.	43.	(a) Milwaukee Science Comp	letion \$ 1,750,000		
		(b) General Remodeling & Repairs	160,500	1,910,500	36,075,250
56.	44.	Chemistry Building, Unit No	• 2	2,400,000	38,475,250
58.	45.	(a) General Classroom Faci Unit No. l	lity \$ 2,000,000		
		(b) Chemistry Building Unit No. 3	2,000,000	4,000,000	42,475,250
60.	46.	(a) Vet Science Building (\$2,750,000 - \$750,000 from others)	\$ 2,000,000		
		(b) Milwaukee Utilities			
		Extensions (c) Land Acquisition	265,000 135,000	2,400,000	44,875,250
62.	47.	Additional Boiler, Madison		960,000	45,835,250
64.	48.	(a) Milwaukee Fine Arts Completion	\$ 1,800,000		
		(b) Agricultural Library	900,000	2 800 000	49 625 250
		(c) Land Acquisition	100,000	2,800,000	48,635,250
66.	49.	(a) General Computing & Da Processing Lab., Ba Unit			
		(b) New Extension Center E		351,880	48,987,130

(See also - Schedule of Self-Amortizing and Gift Projects - attached - Schedule G)

- Notes: 1. Items in brackets () are included in the list approved by the State Building Commission for plans and specifications this biennium. Total of these items = \$9,900,800.
  - 2. () \* Engineering Bldg. Completion \$5,244,750 may not be able to be funded this biennium because of possible lack of funds due to special requirements by the bonding houses arranging loans. It therefore appears in the CCHE list as item 3.

## SCHEDULE A

## CCHE #2

1-A-1	Classroom Lighting & Electrical Services	\$ 50,000
1-A-2	Water Supply & Sewers	25,000
1-A-3	Heating & Ventilating	60,000
1-A-4	Roads	15,000
1-A-5	Milwaukee Projects No. 1 - Science Building - Downtown \$ 84,650 No. 6 - Remodel Main Bldg. 50,000 No. 8 - Utilities, Services <u>150,000</u>	284,650
1-A-6	Miscellaneous items under \$15,000	65,350
1-A-7	Equipment for Kenosha Extension Center	175,000
1-A-8	Equipment for Fox River Valley Extension Center	145,000

\$ 820,000

## SCHEDULE B

## CCHE #12

13-B-1	Home Economics Remodeling	\$ 230,000
13-B-2	Lathrop Hall offices & laboratory	20,000
13-B-3	Sterling Hall Remodeling	50,000
13-B-4	Remodel Nurses' Dormitory or Construct new facilities for School of Nursing	200,000
13-B-5	Elevator replacement in Hospital	40,000
13-в-6	Miscellaneous items under \$15,000 each	60,000

\$ 600,000

## SCHEDULE C

## CCHE #22

20-C-1	Remainder of Classroom Lighting & Electrical Services - See 1-A-1 \$	50,000
20-C-2	Remainder of Water Supply & Sewers - See 1-A-2	25,000
20-C-3	Remainder of Heating & Ventilating - See 1-A-3	60,000
20- <b>C-</b> 4	Safety Devices - Fire Exits & Machine Guards	40,000
20-C-5	Remainder of Roads - See 1-A-4	15,000
20-C-6	Engineering - Remodeling of High Voltage Laboratory	30,000
20-C-7	Milwaukee Project No. 4 - Freight Elevator - Main Bldg.	25,000
20-C-8	Milwaukee Project No. 9 - Field House - Women	21,050
20-C-9	Service Memorial Institute Remodeling	150,000
20-C-10	Utilities Extensions - Madison	300,000
20-C-11	Miscellaneous items under \$15,000 each	33,950

\$ 750,000

## SCHEDULE D

## CCHE #17

16-D-1	Land in Milwaukee	\$ 200,000 to 1,000,000
16-D-2	Land for Dormitories in Madison	100,000 to 500,000
16-D-3	Land for Classrooms, Laboratory, and Service Buildings in Madison	200,000 to 600,000

\$ 1,600,000

## SCHEDULE E

## CCHE # 33

28-E-1Remodel six floor kitchens in hospital<br/>(Estimated \$10,000 each)\$ 60,00028-E-2Miscellaneous items under \$15,000 each40,000

\$ 100,000

## SCHEDULE OF SELF-AMORTIZING OR GIFT PROJECTS

G-1	Intercollege - Art Center and Galleries	\$ ((2,000,000))
G-2	Gymnasium (Athletics)	((2,000,000)) *
G-3	Research Building - Medical School	((1,800,000))
G-4	Milwaukee Student Union - First Unit	(( 850,000))
G-5	Permanent stand for baseball to house locker	
	room, showers, etc., for baseball and track	(( 85,000)) *
G-6	Crew House	(( 175,000)) *
G-7	Eight tennis courts adjacent to new track	(( 32,000)) *
G-8	Purchase of land for golf course	(( 200,000)) *
G-9	U. W. Alumni House - Alumni Donation	(( 250,000))
		\$ ((7,392,000))

\* From Athletic Fee Receipts

#### UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN

#### BUILDING REQUESTS

#### SECOND, THIRD, AND FUTURE BLENNIA

Department	Bui	lding	Estimated Cost	Total
ADMINISTRATION	1.	Administration Building - Completion \$	3,500,000	\$ 3,500,000
AGRICULTURE *	2.	Agricultural Engineering	1,400,000	
	3.	Agriculture Extension - Museum & Storage	140,000	
	4.	Animal Science Building	2,750,000	
	5.	Forum Hall - Farm Short Course	900,000	
	6.	Home Management Practice Houses	90,000	
	7.	Animal Isolation Building for Vet. Science - Charmany Farm Addition	100,000	
	8.	Sheep Research Laboratory & Barn	225,000	
	9.	Poultry Disease Research Laboratory for Veterinary Science	100,000	
	10.	Horticulture-Agronomy-Plant Pathology remodeling in New Plant Science Wing		
	11.	Dairy Husbandry Center Maternity Wing	50,000	
	12.	Plant Science Service Bldgs.	150,000	
	13.	Seeds Building - Addition	<u>190,000</u>	6,320,000
ARBORETUM	14.	Headquarters Building - Completion	70,000	70,000
BUILDINGS &	15.	Utility Extensions - Each Biennium	250,000	
GROUNDS	16.	Central Receiving & Storage Bldg.	420,000	
	17.	Service Building	450,000	1,120,000
DORMITORIES & STUDENT	18.	New Cooperative housing Units (State Portion)	450,000	
HOUSING	19.	University Housing Development	5,000,000	5,450,000

\* Does not include farm buildings at new University Farm at Arlington to be financed from proceeds of sales of University Hill Farms at Madison.

Building Reque	sts -	Second, Third, and Future Biennia		Page 2
Department	Buil	ding	Estimated Cost	Total
EDUCATION	20.	New Education Building	3,250,000	\$
	21.	Gymnasium (State Funds) Women's Unit	<u>2,500,000</u>	5,750,000
ENGINEERING	22.	Mining & Metallurgy Building Addition for Mineral Sciences	1,650,000	
	23.	Mechanical Engineering - Remodeling	50,000	1,700,000
EXTENSION	24.	Addition to Extension Bldg.	1,500,000	
	25.	Extension Center Equipment	500,000	2,000,000
INTER-COLLEGE	26.	Communications Arts Building (Departments of: Speech Journalism Div. of Radio-T.V. Educ. BAVI Univ. Photo Lab. Duplicating Service Editorial Services News Service Wisconsin Press		
		Mass Communications)	8,400,000	
	27.	Land Acquisition - Madison & Milwaukee <u>Each Biennium</u>	3,000,000	
	28.	Multideck Parking Structures	700,000	
	29.	General Remodeling and Repairs Each Biennium	1,500,000	
	30.	Data Processing Lab - Unit #2	200,000	13,800,000
LETTERS &	31.	Chemistry Building	2,600,000	
SCIENCE	32.	Earth Science Building	5,200,000	
	33.	Rebuilding old Chem. Bldg.	2,750,000	
	34.	Birge Hall East Wing (2nd Add.)	2,200,000	12,750,000
LIBRARY	35.	Memorial Room in Main Lobby	80,000	80,000

## Building Requests - Second, Third, and Future Biennia

				. 2	
**	-	-	-	~	
r	а	σ	ρ	- 5	
•	~	Ph	~		

<u>Department</u>	<u>Buil</u>	ding	Estimated Cost	<u>Total</u>
MEDICAL SCHOOL	36.	Hospital B & C Wings two floors addition \$	1,300,000	\$
	37.	Medical School - Add. Corridors	120,000	
*	38.	Hospital Additions (Neuro Psychiatry)	2,000,000	
	39.	Out Patient Department	1,100,000	
*	40.	Research Institute	2,200,000	
	41.	Add. Offices, Classrooms, &		
		Conference Rooms	500,000	7,220,000
MILITARY *	42.	ROTC & NROTC	3,000,000	3,000,000
MILWAUKEE	43.	Physical Education Unit	2,500,000	
	44.	Service & Stores Building	1,120,000	
	45.	Theater	1,000,000	
	46.	Library Addition	1,500,000	
	47.	Classroom Building Completion	2,500,000	
	48.	Math, Physics, & Engineering Building Completion	1,100,000	
	49.	Campus School Addition	425,000	
	50.	Heating Plant-Additional Eoiler	50,000	
	51.	Utility Extensions - <u>Fach Biennium</u>	100,000	10,295,200

\*\* GRAND TUTAL

\$73,055,000

\* Possible Federal Appropriation in part.

i antis -

\*\* This total assumes completion of the program in the 2nd biennium. If extended beyond the 2nd biennium, additional \$4,850,000 for each additional biennium.

and the second of the second second

#### Research Professorships at the University of Wisconsin

#### Prof. Merle Curti

From time to time in the history of the University, proposals were made for establishing special professorships. The idea was that these would attract and keep distinguished scholars and would promote research. President Van Hise thought the University had a three-fold responsibility--teaching, research and useful service to the state. Actually both teaching and useful service are based on research, directly or indirectly. Much research was done before rust-resistant wheat was developed, before milk could be irradiated with vitamin D, before the famous and inspiring frontier theory of American history was worked out.

The Vilas will, a remarkable document, provided for the ultimate establishment of special research professorships, but for a long time we sat back and watched other institutions establish such chairs. In watching, we were confirmed in our conviction as to the important part such professorships might play in the distinction of an institution. It was not until 1947, I believe, that Wisconsin established two such professorships, in memory of Frederick Jackson Turner and Dean Charles Semichter. These were made possible by the generosity of the University of Wisconsin Foundation. At least in the case of the Turner Professorship, the University has assumed responsibility for its continuation. I rejoice that the policy is now being enlarged. I regard the invitation to become the holder of the chair named for my old teacher, the most welcome honor an American historian could receive.

What have been the special advantages of such a professorship? Thanks to the wisdom of Professor Knaplund, Dean Ingraham and President Fred, the terms of the Turner Professorship have given me great freedom to decide how to make the best use of the advantages it offers. I decided that I wanted to continue to spend a part of my time in teaching both undergraduate and graduate students. partly because I like to teach, and partly because research and instruction re-enforce each other. The professorship provided for a part-time research assistant, who has been one of my candidates for the doctor's degree. Gur students have, I think, regarded it as an honor to serve as Frederick Jackson Turner research assistant. The professorship has certainly, by reducing my teaching program. enabled me to take a more active part in the work of national professional organizations concerned with research and academic standards, particularly the Social Science Research Council, the American Council of Learned Societies, and the American Historical Association. It has enabled me to plan my research, not merely in terms of the next year, but over a considerable number of years. It is all but impossible to do this when one cannot count on research leave or support. In my case, the professorship has enabled me especially during summers, to make use of materials in eastern libraries which are unavailable in Madison. Our libraries are good, but a historian must also depend on larger and richer libraries elsewhere.

You may be interested in knowing what kind of historical

4LLAD

problems I have studied and reported on. The place of the scholar, writer, and critic in a democratic society such as ours has interested me a great deal, and I have studied several aspects of the relations between the so-called intellectual and other groups in our society. The contributions of each to the problems and interests of the other, the degree of understanding, misunderstanding, of cooperation and of tension, have been one focus of this inquiry. I presented some of my findings in an address given as president of the American Historical Association in 195µ - "Intellectuals and Other People" and in a book entitled <u>An American Paradox</u>. Some of my students have written masters essays and doctoral dissertations in this important field.

I have also studied some of the problems relating to changing ideas about human nature in America. Several essays, published and unpublished, will, I hope, sometime be brought together in a larger work.

A great part of the time I have devoted to research has been concerned with two big problems of great importance to historians. One is the problem of finding ways to make history more objective, that is, less dependent on the experience and attitudes of the writer of history. I have learned to use some social science methods such as graphs, tables and other statistical aids, as one way of achieving greater objectivity.

The second large purpose of the study I am speaking of, has been to test a major interpretation of American history, that advanced by Professor Turner, which, as you know, considered the frontier process to be the most important factor in the development of American democracy. This frontier theory has been challenged by many scholars, but much of the debate has merely been about the meaning of words. What we need are facts. So I, with the help of research assistants, have made a microscopic study of Trempealeau County, using some statistical methods as well as the more common historical methods. It has been an experiment taking years of work. I have learned a good deal from it. I hope other historians and social scientists will also find it useful. It is being published, as a very large book, by Stanford University Press under the title The Making of an American Community.

In the last two years I have been concerned with studies in the history of American giving or philanthropy, a field until now largely neglected by historians. Thanks to a grant from the Ford Foundation and to the generosity of the Historical Society in providing us with quarters, Professor Irvin G. Wyllie, Professor Robert Bremner of Ohio State, and I are, with the help of three part-time research assistants and a part-time secretary, studying such problems as the relation of voluntary giving to welfare, health, education, the arts, and basic research. We are asking who the chief donors have been; why people have given; and what the thinking and feeling surrounding giving has been, both as concerns the giver, the beneficiary, and the general public. The whole theme is related to religion, law, the tax structure and the role of government in the commonweal, public relations, psychology, and humanitarianism, to name but a few of its many facets, Incidentally, my own work in the project includes a study of American philanthropy overseas, which is an extension of my long-time interest in our international cultural relations. I believe that philanthropy has been an important aspect of the national character. In our time, though more and more things are being done by government, private giving is of continuing importance and special interest. We also think it is appropriate that such a project as this one, supported by a large foundation, should be under way at our publicly supported university.

I hope these remarks will help you to see why I hope very much that we may in the very near future see the establishment of many more research professorships. We ought to have at least one in every department. It would among other things be an attraction to young scholars, to come and to stay with us. It would help keep us at least in the rank in research we now hold, but which we may very well not continue to hold unless we give as strong support to basic research as sister universities are even now giving. I rejoice that President Elvehjem, building on foundations already laid, has spoken so vigorously on this point, and that he has called attention to the need of looking for more private gifts to the University, in the support of many needs, including research. I also hope that the Wisconsin Idea may be retooled to meet new conditions and needs and propose the establishment of an interdisciplinary research institute devoted to a larger and deeper understanding of perhaps the greatest problem of our age - how knowledge may be put to more effective uses. Such a pioneer program would be original and highly worthy of our great tradition.

## DOCUMENT 1343 - October 6, 1958

#### RECOMMENDATION OF THE COLLEGE OF LETTERS AND SCIENCE AND THE MEDICAL SCHOOL

#### FROPOSED CURRICULUM REVISION - MEDICAL TECHNOLOGY COURSE

The course in Medical Technology leads to the degree of Bachelor of Science (Medical Technology) and to a certificate in Medical Technology from the University Hospitals.

A minimum of 90 college credits including both required and elective courses must be completed during the first three years. The fourth year is devoted entirely to the major study (Medical Technology). High-school mathematical preparation is required.

The proposed curriculum for the first three years includes the following, or equivalent, required courses: Freshman English, 6 credits; intermediate composition, 3 credits; English and/or American literature, 6 credits; general chemistry, 8-10 credits; organic chemistry, 4-5 credits; quantitative chemistry, 3-4 credits; physiological chemistry, 4 credits; general zoology, 5 credits; parasitology, 3 credits; microtechnique, 3 credits; general physics, 6 credits; human physiology, 4 credits; medical microbiology, 8 credits; foreign language, 8 credits. To fulfill the foreign language requirement, a student may present two units in one foreign language from high school, or take two semesters of one foreign language in college; or he may present a combination of these two methods. (To fulfill the requirement by a combination of high-school and college courses, the student who presents one unit of a foreign language from high school must take the second semester college course of the same language.) Mathematics, 4 oredits, is required of students who have less than 3 units of high school mathematics. The College of Letters and Science requirement in United States History and Institutions must be satisfied.

The fourth year is devoted entirely to the study of the specialized medical subjects required for the major and to practical work in the laboratories of the hospital. The work of the first semester of the fourth year begins September first, and continues through the university final examination period with no Christmas recess. The second semester starts the last week in January and continues through the second semester with no spring recess. The summer months are spent in the laboratories of the University Hospital. No academic credit is given for the summer work, but it is required for completion of the course.

This proposal includes the changes tabulated below:

#### Old Requirement

#### New Requirement

English and/or American literature or Intermediate Composition 6 cr.

English and/	or American	
Literature		6 cr.
Intermediate	Composition	3 cr.

GLARE

Old Requirement (continued)		New Requirement	
		Microtechnique 3	cr.
History or	6 cr.	L & S Requirements in American History and Institutions 6	cr.
Mathematics (L & S requirements in American History and Institutions must be satisfied)	8 cr.	Mathematics (or 4 3 units High School Math.)	cr.
Foreign language (completion of 4th semester of French or German)		Foreign language 8 (may be satisfied by 2 units in high school or combination)	cr.
Sugges	sted Sequen	ce of Courses	
	First Y	ear	
lst semester	Cr.	2nd semester	Cr.
English la Chemistry 5 or la Zoology l Mathematics 1 or elective	3-5 5-5 <u>14-3</u> 14-17	English 1b Chemistry 1b (Qualitative analysis) Zoology 111 (Microtechnique) Elective	353 353 14
	Second	Year	
English 30a, 32a, 33a or 40a Physics 65a Organic chemistry 120 Organic chemistry 121 Physiology 1 (human)	3 3 3 3 2 4 15	English 30b, 32b, 33b, or 40b Quantitative chemistry 10 Zoology 119 (Parasitology) Physics 65b English 2 or 3	3 4 3 3 3 16
	Third Y	ear	
Medical microbiology 1 U.S. history and institutions	5	Medical microbiology 2 U.S. history and institutions	3 3
Physiological chemistry 103 Foreign language or electives	1-3	Foreign language or electives	10

-2-

The proposed revision would be effective as of September 1, 1958. Students currently enrolled in the Course in Medical Technology may complete the course under the present or revised requirements.